REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
FARMER CITY, ILLINOIS
MONDAY, JULY 20, 2020
6:00 P.M.

AGENDA

PRELIMINARY MATTERS
1. Call to order
2. Rollcall
3. Pledge of allegiance to the flag
4. Proclamations/presentations/recognitions
5. Public Comment —

SECTIONI CONSENT AGENDA

The following items will be adopted on a single motion without discussion unless a council member requests
separate consideration:

A. Approval of the minutes of the July 6, 2020 council minutes

B. Fund Warrant List

SECTION II: UNFINISHED BUSINESS--Ordinances or resolutions previously tabled.

SECTION III: NEW BUSINESS--Ordinances and resolutions for initial consideration

A. RESOLUTION 2020-50 Resolution for Maintenance Under the Illinois Highway Code

B. Approval on License Agreement with Knights Baseball for use of South Park.

C. RESOLUTION 2020-51 Resolution Authorizing the Refund of City of Farmer City Corporate and City of
Farmer City Library Taxes to Jerry L. Wright and Betty L. Wright for Ten Years Beginning with Those
Taxes Due and Payable June 2020.

D. ORDINANCE 1052 An Ordinance Approving a Redevelopment Agreement by and Between the City of
Farmer City, DeWitt County, Illinois and Richard Koch in Connection with the Redevelopment Project
Area.

E. Discussion regarding Farmer City Haunted Forest.

SECTION 1V: EXECUTIVE SESSION

SECTION V: OTHER ITEMS
1. City manager report
2. Non-agenda items and other business

ADJOURNMENT
NOTE: Anyone planning to attend the meeting who has need of special assistance under the Americans with

Disabilities Act (ADA) is asked to contact the city clerk’s office at (309) 928-2842, 48 hours before the
meeting. Staff will be pleased to make the necessary arrangements.



MINUTES OF THE FARMER CITY, ILLINOIS
CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING OF
JULY 6,2020 6 p.m.

Roll call Present: Councilmembers Shelley Friedrich, Willard McKinley, Ben
Burden, Scott Kelley and Mayor Scott Testory.
Also, in attendance: City Manager Sue McLaughlin, City Clerk Angie
Wanserski, City Attorney Joe Chamley.

Pledge of allegiance to the flag

Proclamations/presentations

Public Comment

SECTION I: CONSENT AGENDA
A. Approval of the minutes of the June 15, 2020 council meeting
B. Fund Warrant List
MOTION by McKinley to approve consent agenda. Seconded by Burden.
Voted unanimously. Motion carried.

SECTION II: UNFINISHED BUSINESS Ordinances or resolutions previously tabled

SECTION III: NEW BUSINESS — Ordinances and resolutions for initial consideration

1. Resolution 2020-47 A Resolution Determining Whether the Need for
Confidentiality Still Exists or Is No Longer Required as to All or Part of
Minutes of All Confidential Closed Meetings.
MOTION by McKinley to approve Resolution 2020-47 A Resolution
Determining Whether the Need for Confidentiality Still Exists or Is No
Longer Required as to All or Part of Minutes of All Confidential Closed
Meetings. Seconded by Burden. Voted unanimously. Motion carried.

2. Approval of payout #1 to Spear Corporation for pool equipment in the
amount of $143,093.70.
City Manager McLaughlin states that the engineer has reviewed this
payout and okayed the amount. A crane was onsite last week to install the
surge tank and boxes containing the underground piping were delivered.
MOTION by McKinley to approve payout #1 to Spear Corporation for
pool equipment in the amount of $143,093.70. Seconded by Burden.
Voted unanimously. Motion carried.

3. Ordinance 1051 An Ordinance Adopting a Policy Prohibiting Sexual
Harassment for the City of Farmer City.
City Manager McLaughlin explained that there is already a sexual
harassment ordinance in existence but the state has added provisions.
This ordinance was modeled from IML and covers all the requirements.
MOTION by McKinley to approve Ordinance 1051 An Ordinance
Adopting a Policy Prohibiting Sexual Harassment for the City of Farmer
City. Seconded by Burden. Voted unanimously. Motion carried.



4. Discussion regarding agreement with Knights Baseball for use of South
Park.
This agreement is the same as what was presented to Farmer City
Baseball Corporation. This would be for a travel league run by Herb
Coffey and Steve Little and be primarily played at the South Park
ballfield. It will be brought back at the July 20™ meeting for a vote.

SECTION 1V: EXECUTIVE SESSION - Personnel to discuss appointment, employment,
compensation, discipline and/or performance of specific employee (s)
pursuant to Section 2 (c) of the Open Meetings Act SILCS 120/2 (c) (1)
MOTION by Kelley to close open session and go into executive session.
Seconded by Burden. Voted unanimously. Motion carried
MOTION by McKinley to close executive session and return to open
session. Seconded by Burden. Voted unanimously. Motion carried.

SECTION V: OTHER ITEMS

1. City manager report
City Manager McLaughlin states that the pool is coming along. The
sidewalk project is starting this week and workers will be going door to
door to those affected by the work to discuss this with them. They would
like to begin their day at 6am due to the excessive heat. Some residents
may be unable to access their driveways for an amount of time. The
whole project should be completed in 3 weeks. There is a new contact
number for Area Disposal. Residents will now be calling the Clinton
location instead of Rantoul. The city received a preliminary drawing
from Ken Seneca for the gun range. McLaughlin is in the process of
getting plumbing quotes and asking the concrete quotes to resubmit due
to some add-ons.

2. Non-agenda items and other business.
Councilman McKinley inquired about the ponds at the fairgrounds. Trees
and bushes need to be cut back and cleaned up. Residents were
encouraged to volunteer their time to keep the grounds up as it is a valued
resource. Councilman Kelley also asked for help with mowing the South
Park campsites.

ADJOURNMENT MOTION by McKinley to adjourn meeting. Seconded by Kelley.
Voted unanimously. Motion carried.

Angie Wanserski, City Clerk



CITY OF FARMER CITY

Payment Approval Report - * * *
Report dates: 7/1/2020-8/31/2020

Page: 1
Jul 17, 2020 11:37AM

Vendor Name

Net Invoice Amount

100
CORNEGLIO AG
EVANS FROEHLICH BETHAND
MIDWEST MAILING AND SHIPPI
FRONTIER
FRONTIER
Mediacom
SIMPLY SENNETT
Absopure Water Co
EVANS FROEHLICH BETH AND
EVANS FROEHLICH BETH AND
CLASPILL AUTOMOTIVE
SMITHAMUNDSEN
FRONTIER
TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT
LEXIPOL
LETAC
POLICE LAW INSTITUTE
Evergreen FS Inc
WATCHGUARD VIDEO
SHAFF MACHINERY COMPANY
CORNEGLIO AG
CORNEGLIO AG
Evergreen FS Inc
SUMMIT SUPPLY
FRONTIER

Total 100:

170
FEHR GRAHAM
LEANDER CONSTRUCTION INC
MAURER-STUTZ
PRAIRIE ENGINEERS

Total 170:

270
MAURER-STUTZ
MAURER-STUTZ
SARAH REYNOLDS

Total 270:

490
AREA DISPOSAL

Total 490:

510
HEARTLAND AG INC
RIVA PLUMBING AND HEATING
FRONTIER
NICOR Gas
CORNEGLIO AG
Evergreen FS Inc
ENGER BRO'S HEAT AC PLUMB
G.A. RICH & SONS

1.99
525.00
198.00

78.93
275.49
276.30

25.00

45.05
787.50
140.00
187.67

6,875.00
259.22
132.81
3,078.00
380.00
640.00
895.89
19,651.00
114.97

59.22

34.94
340.44
157.03
136.74

35,196.19

1,791.50
12,724.97
5,310.00
2,500.00

22,326.47

2,442.51
332.50
2,702.74

5477.75

11,525.56

11,525.56

85.38
475.00
135.55
114.55

67.52
179.17
115.00

13,250.00

ADM SUPPLIES

LEGAL ADM

ADM - FOLDER INSERTER

ADM

ADM

ADMIN SERVICES

WEB DEVOLPEMENT

ADM - BUILDING AND PROPERTY
LEGAL

LEGAL -POLICE

BATTERY IN EXPLORER

GEN LABOR REPRESENTATION
POL PHONE

MONTHLY MEMBERSHIP
POLICE ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION
ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP

ON LINE TRAINING

POLICE FUEL

CAMERAS

MOWER PARTS

STREET SUPPLIES

STREET SUPPLIES

STREET FUEL

LITTER BAGS

POOL

CAPITAL PROJ POOL
POOL CAP PROJECTS

WATER ST CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING

GRANT APPLICATION PHASE

JOHN STREET IMPROVEMENTS
MAPLE ST WESTERN ROADWAY IMP
REDEVELOPEMENT AGREEMENT

MONTHLY GARBAGE SERVICE

WATER PEST CONTROL

WATER BUILDING MAINTENANCE
WATER PHONE

WATER GAS

WATER SUPPLIES

WATER FUEL

METER INSTALL ASSIST

REHAB FILTER




CITY OF FARMER CITY Payment Approval Report - * * * Page: 2
Report dates: 7/1/2020-8/31/2020 Jul 17, 2020 11:37AM
Vendor Name Net Invoice Amount
Total 510: 14,422.17
520
Evergreen FS Inc 179.17 SEWER FUEL
Total 520: 178.17
530
CORNEGLIO AG 72.92 ELEC SUPPLIES
CORNEGLIO AG 72,70 ELEC SUPPLIES
ANYTIME TOWING 175.00 TOW FOR TRUCK #9
ROGERS CLINTON READI MIX 560.00 REPAIR SEWER ON LINCOLN ST
Office Machine Repair 10.00 ELE - COPY MACHINE RENTAL
QUADIENT FINANCE USA INC. 113.00 postage
FRONTIER 175.62 ELEC PHONE
IMEA 123,359.65 ELEC GENERATION
NICOR Gas 159.89 ELEC 300 N WEST ST
NICOR Gas 1,556.47 ELE-NATURAL GAS (GENERATION)
McMaster-Carr 47.83 TOOLS FOR POOL
Evergreen FS Inc 19710 ELEC FUEL
Totai 530: 126,500.18
Grand Totals: 215,627.49




CITY OF FARMER CITY

Payment Approval Report - * * *
Report dates: 7/1/2020-8/31/2020

Page: 1
Jul 07, 2020 02:29PM

Vendor Name

Net Invoice Amount

100
TERRY EMMERSON

Total 100:

170
Spear Corporation

Total 170:

280
HAIR BOUTIQUE

Total 280;

290

FARMER CITY RACEWAY
FARMER CITY RACEWAY

Total 290;

Grand Totals:

100.00 WORK BOOT REIMBURSEMENT

100.00

143,093.70 POOL - MAINT SUPPLIES

143,093.70

690.45 COVID BUSINESS GRANT

690.45

3,000.00 FIREWORK DONATION

1,500.00 COVID BUSINESS GRANT

4,500.00

148,384.15




PROJECT: Farmer City 2020 MFT
MSMAURER-STUTZ rororo oy

ENGINEERS SURVEYORS BY: GBM DATE: July 9, 2020

3116 N. Dries Lane, Suite 100 TEL 309-693-7615
Peoria, IL 61604 FAX 309-693-7616

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

Sue McLaughlin, ICMA-CM SUBJECT: MFT Maintenance
City Manager City of Farmer City
105 S. Main Street 20-00000-00-GM

Farmer City, IL 61842

ATTENTION: Sue

TRANSMITTING: X Herewith BY: Messenger
Under Separate Cover Mail
UPS

ENCLOSED: Prints FOR: Approval X

Specifications Your Files
Shop Drawings Your Signature
X Copies Distribution
Other Per Your Request

COPIES: | DESCRIPTION:
4 Maintenance Resolution — BLR 14220 (To be passed, signed by Clerk and sealed)

Municipal Estimate of Maintenance Costs — BLR 14222 (To be signed by you or the
Mayor)

Maintenance Engineering Agreement — BLR 05520 (To be signed by you or the Mayor)

REMARKS: Please return all signed documents to me at the Peoria Office at your earliest
convenience and we will forward to IDOT for approval. If you have any questions or comments,
please contact me at the above number.

"%Q D/ /@/

Gec"rge B/ Merkle, P. E.
enior Project Engineer

Thank-you,

FROM:

Cc: File

$:\237\2020\23720015.00 (Farmer City 2020 MFT Program)\Correspondence\ltems LOT to City for Appr.doc Rev. 06/22/05



llinois Department Resolution for Maintenance

of Transportation Under the lllinois Highway Code
Resolution Number Resolution Type Section Number
KO0 - SO Original 20-00000-00-GM
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the City of
Governing Body Type Local Public Agency Type
Farmer City Hlinois that there is hereby appropriated the sum of
Name of Local Public Agency
thirty five thousand Dollars ( $35,000.00 )

of Motor Fuel Tax funds for the purpose of maintaining streets and highways under the applicable provisions of lllinois Highway Code from

05/01/20 to 04/30/21
Beginning Date Ending Date

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that only those operations as listed and described on the approved Estimate of Maintenance Costs,
including supplemental or revised estimates approved in connection with this resolution, are eligible for maintenance with Motor Fuel Tax
funds during the period as specified above.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that City of Farmer City
L.ocal Public Agency Type Name of Local Public Agency

shall submit within three months after the end of the maintenance period as stated above, to the Department of Transportation, on forms
available from the Department, a certified statement showing expenditures and the balances remaining in the funds authorized for
expenditure by the Department under this appropriation, and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk is hereby directed to transmit four (4) ceritified originals of this resolution to the district office
of the Department of Transportation.

I Angie Wanserski City Clerk in and for said City
Name of Clerk Locai Public Agency Type Local Public Agency Type
of Farmer City in the State of Hlinois, and keeper of the records and files thereof, as

Name of Local Public Agency
provided by statute, do hereby certify the foregoing to be a true, perfect and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the

Council of Farmer City ata meeting heldon _ 07/20/20
Governing Body Type Name of Local Public Agency ate
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and seal this  20th  day of July, 2020
Day Month, Year
(SEAL) Clerk Signature
APPROVED

Regional Engineer
Department of Transportation Date

Printed 07/09/20 BLR 14220 (Rev. 02/08/19)




lllinois Department Maintenance Engineering to be EYE

of Transportation Performed by a Consulting Engineer [
Local Public Agency County Section Number
City of Farmer City DeWitt 20-00000-00-GM

The services to be performed by the consulting engineer, pertaining to the various items of work included in the estimated cost of the
maintenance operations (BLR 14222), shall consist of the following:

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING shall include:

Investigation of the condition of the streets or highways for determination (in consultation with the local highway authority) of the
maintenance operations to be included in the maintenance program; preparation of the maintenance resolution (BLR 14220 for
municipalities and counties), maintenance estimate of cost and, if applicable, proposal; attendance at meetings of the governing
body as may reasonably be required; attendance at public letting; preparation of the contract, quotations, and/or acceptance (BLR
12330) form. Also, preparation of the maintenance expenditure statement which must be submitted to IDOT within 3 months of
the end of the maintenance period.

ENGINEERING INSPECTION shall include;

Furnishing the engineering field inspection, including preparation of payment estimate for contract, material proposal and/or
deliver and install proposal and/or checking material invoices of those maintenance operations requiring engineering field
inspection. For operations requiring material testing ensure the testing is completed by a qualified firm.

For furnishing preliminary engineering, the engineer will be paid a base fee PLUS a negotiated fee percentage. Only one base fee can be
charged per maintenance period. For furnishing engineering inspection, the engineer will be paid a negotiated fee percentage. The
negotiated preliminary engineering fee percentage for each maintenance group shown in the "Schedule of Fees" shall be applied to the
total estimated costs of that group. The negotiated fee for engineering inspection for each maintenance group shall be applied to the total
final cost of that group for the times which required engineering inspections. In no case shall this be construed to include supervision of the
contractor operations.

SCHEDULE OF FEES
Total of all Maintenance Operations:
[]<=$20000 Base FeeL [X] > $20,000  Base Fee = $1,250.00
PLUS
Maintenance Preliminary Engineering Engineering Inspection
Engineering Category| Maximum Fee % | Negotiated Fee % | Maximum Fee % | Negotiated Fee % Operation(s) to be Inspected
I NA NA NA NA NA
A 2% 2% 1% 1%
1B 3% 3%
] 4% 4%
v 5% 6%

The LPA certifies that the selection of the ENGINEER was performed in accordance with the Local Government Professional Service
Selection Act 50 (ILCS 510/1-510/8) and procedures outlined in Chapter 5 of the DEPARTMENT's Bureau of Local Roads and Streets
Manual.

BY: BY:
Local Public Agency Signature Date Consulting Engineer Signatuire Date
C ¥y '!)
/ﬂiﬁ@%]& 4 /}/ .M@/ 7/9/202¢
Title Ti’l{e i [ N
Senior Project Engineer
P.E. Seal \\t\“i‘(",‘“{g”‘/[:;“’f;, Date
o oo en . e,
§‘<,/O?‘ eono o é"? (’z,, Exp
Sor RIS [t/20) 202/
§ 7062-042917 % % / -
. z ¢ HICENSED 7% =
Approved: = (PROFESSIONAL: 3
Regional Engineer, IDOT Date 2 % ENGINEER ¢ §
%, N, OF 5§

z/l,,, / LIN O\S‘\‘\\\\\\

R

Printed 07/09/20 BLR 05520 (Rev. 06/17/19)




llinois Department
of Transportation

Estimate of Maintenance Costs

Local Public Agency General Maintenance

]

Submittal Type!Original

Maintenance Period

Local Public Agency County Section Number Beginning Ending
City of Farmer City DeWitt 20-00000-00-GM {|05/01/20 04/30/21
Maintenance ltems
Material Categories/ Total
Maint Point of Delivery or Maintenance
Maintenance Eng Insp. | Work Performed by Operation
Operation Category| Req. |an Outside Contractor Unit Quantity Unit Cost Cost Cost
General
Maintenance
1. Restriping HA Yes |Striping Removal Sq Ft 666 $12.00 $7,992.00
A Yes |Striping Replacement Foot 2,000 $3.50 $7,000.00 $14,992.00
2. Tree Trimming/
Removal HA No |Labor Hour 200 $50.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00,
3. Snowand lee A No |Rock Salt Ton 50 $80.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00
4. Aggregate for
Rdwys, Shids, HA No |CA-6 Aggregate, Type B Ton 25 $22.00 $550.00
Alleys & Drives
HA No |CA-16 Aggregate-Blotter Ton 18 $25.00 $450.00 $1,000.00
Total Operation Cost $29,992.00
Estimate of Maintenance Costs Summary
Maintenance MFT Funds Other Funds Estimated Costs
Local Public Agency Labor
Local Public Agency Equipment
Materials/Contracts(Non Bid ltems) $29,992.00 $29,992.00
Materials/Deliver & Install/Request for Quotations (Bid Items)
Formal Contract (Bid ltems)
Maintenance Total $29,992.00 $29,992.00

Estimated Maintenance Eng Costs Summary

Maintenance Engineering MFT Funds Other Funds Total Est Costs
Preliminary Engineering $1,849.84 $1,849.84
Engineering Inspection $149.92 $149.92
Material Testing
Advertising
Bridge Inspection Engineering

Maintenance Engineering Total $1,999.76 $1,999.76

Total Estimated Maintenance $31,991.76 $31,991.76

Remarks
Printed 07/09/20 Page 1 of 2 BLR 14222 (Rev. 01/16/20)



Estimate of Maintenance Costs Submittal Type|Original 1

Maintenance Period

Local Public Agency County Section Beginning Ending
City of Farmer City DeWitt 20-00000-00-GM ||05/01/20 04/30/21
SUBMITTED
Local Public Agency Official Date
Title
APPROVED

Regional Engineer
County Engineer/Superintendent of Highways Date Department of Transportation Date

Printed 07/09/20 Page 2 of 2 BLR 14222 (Rev. 01/16/20)



LICENSE AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN THE

CITY OF FARMER CITY, DEWITT COUNTY, ILLINOIS,
as Licensor

AND
KNIGHTS BASEBALL, a not for profit organization,

as Licensee

DATED AS OF JULY 20, 2020




LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR USE OF PROPERTY

THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT, including any Exhibit and any Addendum hereto
as set forth in Section 1 of this instrument (collectively, the “License”), is made and entered into as
of the Date of License as set forth in Section 1 of this License, by and between the City of Farmer
City, Dewitt County, Illinois, as the Licensor (the “City”), and the undersigned party or parties set
forth in Section 1 of this License, as the Licensee (the “Licensee”).

WITNESSETH:

RECITALS:

The City owns or controls and is the governing authority for certain real estate and
improvements thereon generally used for public recreation and sporting facilities for the general use
of residents of Farmer City.

The Licensee desires to use and occupy certain premises more particularly described in
Section 1 of this License as the “Premises”, under such terms and conditions as are more
particularly set forth in this License, said license being to use the Premises to the exclusion of others
at times as detailed herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the payments, covenants and
agreements on the part of the Licensee to be paid, kept and performed, the City hereby grants to the
Licensee a license to use and occupy the premises more particularly described in Section 1 of this
License as the “Premises” for the “Term” as set forth in Section 1 of this License, unless sooner
terminated under other terms and provisions contained in this License, subject, however, to all
conditions, covenants and restrictions of the Application and the Airport Lease.

Section 1. General Definitions; Variable Terms. Unless the context hereof
clearly indicates otherwise, the capitalized words, terms and phrases defined in the Recitals hereto
and otherwise herein shall have the same meanings for all purposes of this License. In addition, in
all cases the singular includes the plural, the plural includes the singular and a reference to any
gender includes both genders and the neuter, as the case may be. Certain further terms for all
purposes of this License are defined as follows:




“Date of License”: July 6, 2020
“City Representative”: City Manager of the City of Farmer City

“City’s Address”: 105 S. Main Street
Farmer City, IL 61842-0049
Tel: (309) 928-3412

“Licensee”: Knights Baseball, a not for profit organization engaged in organizing and providing
specific recreational opportunities primarily for the residents of Farmer City

“Licensee’s Representative”: Herb Coffey and Steve Little

“Licensee’s Address”: 312 N Plum St
Farmer City, IL
Tel: (217) 552-8342

“Premises” means the premises, the boundaries and location of which are outlined in yellow on the
Site Plan as set forth on Exhibit 1, which are located in the area or in the structure on the real estate
commonly known as South Park

“Term”: Perpetual, renewing automatically each year, unless sooner terminated in accordance with
Section 7 of this License. Notwithstanding, either party may terminate this License without cause
and without recourse upon 90 days advance written notice.

“License Fee”: $0.00, payable in advance as specified in Section 4 of this License.

“Utility Services” means the utility services to be supplied by the City for use in connection with
existing utility facilities on or in the Premises under this License, if any, more specifically described
as follows: electricity and water.

“Permitted Use”: baseball and similar sporting activities and auxiliary activities such as
concession stand.

“Public Liability Insurance Amounts” means not less than $1,000,000 for bodily injury or death
to any number of persons in any one accident and not less than $250,000 for property damage.

Section 2. Condition of Premises. The License acknowledges having inspected
and knowing the condition and state of repair of the Premises. It is expressly understood and agreed
by and between the City and the Licensee that the Premises are provided by the City to the Licensee
in an “as is”, “where is” condition without any representation or warranty by the City concerning
its condition. The Licensee acknowledges that the City has made no representation or warranty
concerning the condition and state of repair of the Premises, nor any agreement or promise to alter,
improve, adapt, repair, remove, redecorate or clean the Premises unless the same is otherwise
expressly stated herein or made a part hereof.

Section 3. Authorized Representative. Whenever under the provisions of this
License, the approval of the City or Licensee is required, or the City or the Licensee is required to

-



take some action at the request of the other, such approval or such request shall be given to the City
Representative for the City and to the Licensee Representative for the Licensee, and such respective
representative shall be authorized to act for and on behalf of such applicable party on any such
approval or request made by the other party.

Section 4. Payment of Licensee Fee. All payments of the License Fee as set forth
in Section 1 of this License shall be made at the office of the City Representative on or before the
date or dates specified in Section 1 of this License.

Section 5. Other Terms and Conditions.

A. Operation of a concession stand. If a concession stand is operated on city
property, the user shall comply with all local health, occupancy and other ordinances for South
Park. The Licensee shall inspect the concession stand at the beginning of the season to identify any
problems and notify the City, if necessary. If Licensee operates a concession stand, Licensee shall
be deemed to accept the condition “as is” as detailed in Section 2 of this Agreement. The City shall
be given a set of keys to any locked property kept on City property, or the locks will be removed.
As the concession stand is not open for the general public, each party shall lock the premises upon
exiting.

B. Bathrooms. The Licensee is responsible for cleaning the bathrooms after
each gameday. The Licensee and the City shall share responsibility to provide paper towels and
toilet paper during the duration of their season. The City is responsible for general maintenance of
the facilities. The City shall be responsible for cleaning the bathrooms outside of gamedays and
provide paper towels and toilet paper during the rest of the summer season.

C. Storage. There shall be no placement or usage of any storage units or any
modifications to the park or park equipment without prior written City approval. The Licensee is
solely responsible for the placement, care and protection of any and all equipment placed, stored or
used on the property. The City is not responsible for lost, stolen or damaged equipment and
supplies stored in or on City facilities. The City does not assume any responsibility, care, custody
or control of any third party’s property or equipment brought upon or stored upon City property.
Such third party is solely responsible for safety and/or security of any property or equipment
brought upon or stored on City property. Any third party using City property shall adhere to all
applicable facility and City ordinances, rules, regulations, policies and procedures.

D. Clean Up. Licensee is responsible for cleaning the park after each use. The
City shall cause garbage cans to be provided at each field location. Licensee shall be responsible
for assuring that all garbage, equipment and supplies are picked up after every game and practice.

E. Field Maintenance and Upkeep. Licensee shall be responsible for the
following field maintenance upkeep on an annual basis for their season at their own cost, except the
City shall provide assistance as needed, upon agreement of the parties:

Fertilize the field, as the Licensee sees fit
Spray weeds, as the Licensee sees fit
Provide general maintenance and upkeep



F. Inspection and Notice to City. Licensee and all users of the Premises are
solely responsible for determining if any field is safe and appropriate for any intended use and are
expected to inspect any field/facility prior and subsequent to each use to identify any unsafe
condition and shall promptly advise the City in writing of any perceived unsafe or dangerous
condition.

G. Utilities. The City shall provide the Utility Services specified in Section 1 of
this License for Licensee’s use of the existing utility facilities on or in the Premises, but the City
does not warrant that any such Utility Services will be free from interruptions caused by war,
insurrection, civil commotion, riots, acts of God or the enemy or government action, repairs,
renewals, improvements, alterations, strikes, lockouts, picketing, whether legal or illegal, accidents,
inability of the City to obtain fuel or supplies, or any other cause or causes beyond the City’s
reasonable control. Any such interruption of Utility Services shall never be deemed an eviction
(actual or constructive) or a disturbance of the Licensee’s use and occupation of the Premises or any
part of that Premises and shall never render the City liable to the Licensee for damages or relieve
the Licensee from performance of the Licensee’s obligations under this License.

H. Conduct and Use. The Licensee shall use the Premises only for the purposes
of conducting thereon the Permitted Use and for incidental purposes related thereto and no other
purpose. Licensee may not change Licensee’s Permitted Use of the Premises without the City’s
prior written consent. In connection with any substance, material, waste, pollutant or contaminant,
in solid, liquid or gaseous form, including, without limitation, radioactive substances, radon,
asbestos, urea formaldehyde, polychlorinated biphenyls, natural or synthetic gas or mixtures
thereof, and petroleum or petroleum products (including crude oil and any fractions thereof), or
every such thing classified or regulated as “hazardous”, “toxic” or “dangerous” under any federal,
state or local law, (collectively, a “Hazardous Material”), Licensee shall not possess, use, handle,
release, dispose of or otherwise engage in any activity involving any Hazardous Material
(collectively, a “Hazardous Material Activity”) on or within the Premises or the building, if any,
of which the Premises are a part except in the ordinary course of its Permitted Use and in de
minimus amounts without the prior written consent of the City. Licensee shall remove any such
Hazardous Material and any related equipment or containers used by the Licensee in connection
therewith from the Premises at Licensee’s sole cost and expense on or before the expiration or
earlier termination of this License. The Licensee further agrees that the Licensee’s use of the
Premises shall in no way interfere with the use by any other party of any other portion of the
building, if any, of which the Premises are a part and that the Licensee will not in any way place
any item or material outside the Premises. Licensee shall not use or do any act within, or permit
any use of or the doing of any act within, the Premises or the building, if any, of which the Premises
are a part, in any manner which may be prohibited by the standard form of any all risk property and
casualty insurance policy carried or maintained by the City in connection therewith.

L. Compliance with Applicable Laws. Licensee covenants and agrees that in
the use and occupation of the Premises and in the prosecution or conduct of the Permitted Use
therein, the Licensee shall comply with all material requirements of all applicable laws, ordinances,
orders, regulations and standards of the federal, state and local authorities and with any directive,
permit, license or certificate of occupancy issued pursuant thereto by any public officer or officers,
including, but not limited to, those relating to occupational safety and health, to Hazardous Material
and to the proper undertaking of any Hazardous Material Activity and Licensee shall take all

4-



reasonable steps and measures to ensure that all members, participants, guests and invitees and
other persons who will be using or occupying the use area shall comply with all laws, rules,
regulations ordinances and policies of the City and State of Illinois. Licensee covenants that it will
not use or permit to be used any part of the Premises for any dangerous, noxious, or offensive trade
or business and will not cause or maintain any nuisance in, at, or on the Premises or the building, if
any, of which the Premises are a part. The Licensee shall be solely responsible for obtaining at the
Licensee’s sole cost and expense any and all licenses and permits required for its use and occupancy
of the Premises and its Permitted Use under this License.

J. Access and Inspection. The City and any other governmental agency,
together with their respective officers, employees, agents and contractors, may enter upon the
Premises at any time for any purposes not inconsistent with the use and occupation of the Premises
under this License, including but not limited to the purpose of inspection. In addition, the City shall
have the right at any time to show the Premises to any other prospective lessee or licensee.

Licensee shall have exclusive rights to the property beginning on or about March 1 of each calendar
year until on or about October 31 of each calendar year. Any third-party interest in the use of the
Premises shall be upon agreement of the Licensee and the City, and both parties shall negotiate in
good faith.

K. Maintenance and Surrender of Premises. The Licensee shall, at its own cost
and expense, keep the Premises in sanitary, clean and neat order and at the expiration or earlier
termination of this License, the Licensee shall surrender the Premises in the same condition as that
existing as of the commencement of the Term of this License, reasonable wear and tear excepted.
The Licensee shall make no alterations, improvements or other changes to the Premises or any part
thereof without an agreement between the parties.

Section 6. Liability, Indemnification and Insurance.

A. Liability and Indemnification.

(1) The City shall not be responsible for any loss of or damages to the property
of the Licensee, or for damages to the property or injuries to or death of any person of the
Licensee’s officers, agents, or employees, or others who may be on the Premises at their
invitation or the invitation of any one of them, which may arise from or be attributable or
incident to the condition or state of repair of the Premises, including latent or patent defects
therein.

(i)  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Licensee agrees to assume all risks
of loss of or damage to property, including the Premises and the building and improvements,
if any, of which the Premises are a part, and injury to or death of persons by reason of or
incident to the possession and/or use of the Premises by Licensee, or any of the activities
conducted by Licensee under this License. The Licensee expressly waives all claims against
the City for any such loss, damage, personal injury or death caused by or occurring as a
consequence of such possession and/or use of the Premises by Licensee or the conduct of
activities or the performance of responsibilities by Licensee under this License. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, the Licensee further agrees to indemnify, save, hold
harmless, and defend the City, their respective officers, agents and employees, from and

-5-



against all suits, claims, demands or actions, liabilities, judgments, costs and attorneys’ fees
arising out of, or in any manner predicated upon, personal injury, death or property damage
resulting from, related to, caused by or arising out of the possession and/or use of the
Premises by Licensee or any activities conducted or services furnished by Licensee in
connection with or pursuant to this License, whether such loss, damages, injuries or death
shall be caused by or in any way result from or arise out of any act, omission or negligence
of Licensee or any occupant, visitor or user of any portion of the Premises. The agreements
contained in the preceding sentence do not extend to claims for damages caused solely by
the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the City, their respective officers, agents or
employees, without contributory fault on the part of any person, firm or corporation.
Anything to the contrary notwithstanding, the provisions of this Section 6.A.(ii) shall not
apply to bar any claims, demands or causes of action by the Licensee resulting from any
negligent act or omission of the City, their respective officers, agents or employees, unless
such claim, demand or cause of action arises out of any activities conducted or services
performed by the City on the Premises for and on behalf of the Licensee.

(iii)  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Licensee shall indemnify, hold
harmless and hereby waives any claim for contribution against the City, their respective
officers, agents and employees, for any damages, expenses, liabilities, fines, costs,
attorneys’ fees or penalties resulting from any Hazardous Material Activity or any other acts
or omissions of the Licensee, or any of its officers, agents, employees, contractors or the
invitees of any of them, which gives rise to any liability, civil or criminal, or responsibility,
of the City, under any applicable federal, state or local environmental laws in connection
with the Licensee’s use and occupation of the Premises under this License. The provisions
of this Section 6.B.(iii) shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this License and
the Licensee’s obligations hereunder shall apply whenever the City incurs any cost or
liability for any of the Licensee’s Hazardous Material Activity or other acts or omissions of
the types described in this Section 6.A.(iii).

B. Insurance Required of Licensee. During the baseball season, the Licensee, at
its sole cost and expense, shall carry and maintain:

(1) Comprehensive general liability insurance, including but not limited to
insurance against claims or causes of action for personal injury (including without limitation
bodily injury or death) or for property damage arising in connection with the Licensee’s use
and occupation of the Premises including any improvements therein, (but not insuring the
actual Premises or improvements thereon) to provide protection as of the commencement of
the Term of this License and at all times during the period that this License shall be in effect,
with limits of liability in amounts not less than the respective Public Liability Insurance
Amounts as specified in Section 1 of this License. Such insurance shall also include
coverage against liability for personal injury (including without limitation bodily injury or
death) and for property damage arising out of the acts or omissions of others who may be on
the Premises at the invitation of the Licensee, or involving any owned, hired and nonowned
automotive or other motor vehicle equipment in connection with any of the Licensee’s
activities under this License, and any such polices shall not be endorsed to exclude claims
arising from athletic participation; and

(i) Property insurance, including but not limited to insurance protecting and

-6-



indemnifying the Licensee against any and all damages to and loss of any of the equipment,
furnishings, furniture, fixtures, inventory or contents of the Licensee or others which may be
located or stored in the Premises (collectively, “Licensee’s Personal Property”), and all
claims and liabilities related thereto, in such form and amounts, if any, as the Licensee shall
deem necessary or appropriate.

C. Policy Provisions. All insurance which this License requires the Licensee to
carry and maintain or cause to be carried or maintained in Section 6.B.(i) above shall be in such
form, for such period of time, and with such insurers having a Best rating of “A” or better and
licensed to do business in the State of Illinois as the City shall approve. All policies or certificates
issued by any insurer of the comprehensive general liability insurance specified in Section 6.B.(1)
will name the City as additional insureds, provide that any losses shall be paid notwithstanding any
act, omission or negligence of the Licensee, the City, or any other person, provide that no
cancellation, reduction in amount, or material change in coverage thereof shall be effective until at
least thirty (30) days after receipt by the City of written notice thereof, provide that the insurer shall
have no right of subrogation against either the City, and be reasonably satisfactory to the City in all
other respects. In no circumstances will the Licensee be entitled to assign to any third party rights
of action which the Licensee may have against the City. The types and limits of insurance may be
changed from time to time as determined by the City.

D. Reliance Upon Property Insurance. The Licensee understands that the City,
in reliance upon Section 6.B.(ii) above, will not carry insurance of any kind on any of the
Licensee’s Personal Property which may be located or stored in the Premises and that the City shall
not be liable for any damage thereto or loss thereof. The Licensee hereby releases the City from
any and all responsibility whatsoever in connection with the Licensee’s Personal Property and
acknowledges that any location or storage of the Licensee’s Personal Property in connection with
the Licensee’s occupation and use of the Premises shall be solely at the Licensee’s risk. In the
event of any damage to or loss of any of the Licensee’s Personal Property, the Licensee shall look
solely to the Licensee’s insurance coverage as specified by Section 6.B.(ii) above and shall make no
claim whatsoever against the City.

E. Delivery of Policies. The Licensee shall deliver or cause to be delivered to
the City on or before the commencement of the Term of this License certificates or policies of
insurance evidencing the insurance required by Section 6.B.(i) of this License.

Section 7. Termination; Violations. The City may terminate this License and
repossess the Premises in the event any of the terms, covenants and conditions of this License have
been violated by the Licensee, and all the rights of the Licensee hereunder shall terminate
immediately upon the date or time specified in any written notice of such termination given by the
City to the Licensee. In the event of any such termination, the Licensee shall surrender possession
of and vacate the Premises immediately and deliver possession thereof to the City. The Licensee
further agrees to pay to the City upon demand all of the City’s costs, charges and expenses,
including reasonable fees of attorneys, agents and others retained by the City, paid or incurred by
the City in terminating this License prior to the expiration of its Term or in otherwise enforcing any
of the Licensee’s obligations under this License. No waiver by the City of any of the terms,
covenants or conditions hereof to be performed, kept and observed by the Licensee shall be
construed to be or act as a waiver of any subsequent default of any of the terms, covenants and
conditions herein contained to be performed, kept and observed by the Licensee. The right of the

-7-



City to terminate this License as provided for herein shall not be deemed to be exclusive of any
other right or remedy as may be conferred by law, including specific performance or any other
equitable action.

Section 8. Assignment. The Licensee shall not assign this License or any right or
interest of the Licensee therein, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the City.

Section 9. Notices. Any notice or communication to be made or given by the City
to the Licensee under this License shall be deemed sufficiently made or given if the same be in
writing and sent: (i) by first class mail, postage prepaid; (ii) by courier for next day delivery; (iii)
by telephone facsimile telephonically confirmed as actually received; or (iv) personally delivered, in
each case to the attention of the Licensee’s Representative at the Premises or at the Licensee’s
Address as set forth in Section 1 of this License (or such other address as the Licensee shall
hereafter designate by notice to the City). Any notice from the Licensee to the City shall be
sufficiently given if sent in any manner as specified above in this Section 9 for notices or
communications to be made or given by the City to the attention of the City’s Representative at the
City’s Address as set forth in Section 1 of this License (or such other address as the City shall
hereafter designate by notice to the Licensee). The time of making or giving any such notice or
communication shall be deemed to be the time when the same is mailed, deposited with a courier,
telefaxed or personally delivered as herein provided.

Section 10. Entire Agreement. This License constitutes the entire agreement of the
City and the Licensee on the subject matter hereof and may not be changed, modified, discharged or
extended except by written endorsement duly executed on behalf of the City and the Licensee and
attached hereto. The Licensee represents, warrants, covenants and agrees that no representations or
warranties shall be binding upon the City unless expressed in writing herein.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto have executed or caused this
License to be executed by proper officers duly authorized to execute the same as of the Date of
License set forth herein.

LICENSOR: LICENSEE:
CITY OF FARMER CITY,
DEWITT COUNTY, ILLINOIS Knights Baseball, a not for profit organization
By: By:
Scott Testory (Name)Herb Coffey
Mayor (Title)
(SEAL) (SEAL)
ATTEST: ATTEST:
Angie Wanserski (Name) Steve Little
City Clerk (Title)




STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS.
COUNTY OF DEWITT )

I, the undersigned, a notary in and for said County and State aforesaid, DO HEREBY
CERTIFY, that Scott Testory, personally known to me to be the Mayor of the City Clerk, Illinois,
and Angie Wanserski, personally known to me to be the City Clerk of the City of Farmer City,
Ilinois, whose names are subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me this day in
person and severally acknowledge that as such Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, they signed and
delivered the said instrument of writing as Mayor and as City Clerk of said City of Farmer City, and
caused the seal of said City of Farmer City to be affixed thereto, pursuant to the authority given by

the City Council of said City of Farmer City, as their free and voluntary act, and as the free and
voluntary act and deed of said City, for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

Given under my hand and Notarial seal this day of ,

Notary Public

STATE OF

)
) SS.
COUNTY OF )

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State aforesaid, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY, that

personally known to me to be the President of the corporation who is the Licensee,
and

, personally known to me to be the
Secretary of said corporation, and personally known to me to be the same persons
whose names are subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me this day in person and
severally acknowledged that as such President and Secretary of said
corporation, they signed and delivered the said instrument of writing as President and

Secretary of said corporation, and caused the corporate seal of said corporation to be
affixed thereto, pursuant to authority given by the Board of Directors of said corporation, as their
free and voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act and deed of said corporation, for the uses
and purposes therein set forth.

Given under my hand and Notarial Seal, this day of

Notary Public

-10-



Exhibit 1

QOutline Showing the Boundaries and Location of the Premises

-11-



RESOLUTION NO 2020-51

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE REFUND OF CITY OF FARMER CITY CORPORATE AND CITY
OF FARMER CITY LIBRARY TAXES TO JERRY L. WRIGHT AND BETTY L. WRIGHT FOR TEN
YEARS BEGINNING WITH THOSE TAXES DUE AND PAYABLE JUNE 2020

WHEREAS, the city of Farmer City, Illinois annexed real estate to the city of Farmer City on April 20, 1992
owned by Roy E. Wright, et. al.; and

WHEREAS, the city of Farmer City, lllinois agreed to refund the corporate portion of the real property tax
to other property owners whose properties were annexed to the city at the same time; and

WHEREAS, the refund agreement was not executed because it was in an estate and the property was
later transferred to Jerry L. Wright and Betty L. Wright; and

WHEREAS, a request had been made to the city of Farmer City, Illinois from Jerry L. Wright and Betty L.
Wright to have the property disconnected from the city or to have the city of Farmer City corporate and
city of Farmer City library taxes refunded as long as the property remains solely agricultural.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FARMER CITY, DEWITT COUNTY,
ILLINOIS:

FIRST: that the city council hereby finds that it is in the best interests of the city Farmer City, lllinois
to retain the property owned by Jerry L Wright and Betty L Wright which is described as
Section 20, Township 21, Range 5 East of the South (Parcel Numbers 05-21-351-006 and 05-
20-400-004) within the corporate limits of the city.

SECOND: that the city council further finds that it was intended in 1992 to grant a ten — year refund of
the city of Farmer City corporate and the city of Farmer City library taxes to the owner of
the property for a ten year period.

THIRD: that the city manager be authorized and directed to execute documents with Jerry L Wright
and Betty L Wright to refund the city of Farmer City corporate and the city of Farmer City
library real property taxes for ten year period beginning with those taxes payable June 2020
and September 2020

FOURTH: that the city manager or other appropriate city official be directed to reimburse Jerry L
Wright and Betty L Wright each September upon receipt of documentation showing that the
real estate taxes have been paid for parcel number 05-21-351-006 for the city Farmer City
corporate and the city Farmer City library taxes and for parcel number 05-20-400-004 for
the city of Farmer City corporate and city of Farmer City fibrary taxes as long as the property
remains farmland and is maintained as a farm or open space. The exclusion would not



remain on the property if the principal source of income was to come from a farm operation
other than the growing of crops.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FARMER CITY, COUNTY OF DEWITT, ILLINOIS
THIS 20™ DAY OF JULY 2020

AYES: NAYS: ABSTAIN: ABSENT: ATTEST:

SCOTT TESTORY, MAYOR ANGIE WANSERSKI, CITY CLERK



TAX INCREMENT FINANCING ASSISTANCE APPLICATION

Note that applications must be reviewed and approved before the project begins. Any costs
incurred before the project is approved are not eligible for TIF funds. Also, if there is a
significant change in the scope of the project after the application has been approved, the
applicant must reapply with the scope of the new project.)

Applicant Information

Applicant name H’Ch/”é N. Koch

Business name K O Customs & AUToroTive

Mailing address &/ 0 g /).ep07- R /://)/‘MJ/‘ 617«// Ti. b/§9%

. . ] C
Applicant phone number 399-92%- 360c Ea;[r(umber 309-222-525%

E-mail address _ll/Q_c;«_h_i_/ [ & € Shhoa. Car

Grant recipient's name ﬁlc/? ard 1D Koeb

Grant recipient's Social Security number OR ) _ o
Federal employer identification number (FEIN) 3.5 -134Y €4 S0

Type of business entity
%€ individual ____ corporation
_E partnership __ other
Building information (please attachacopy ofthe deed tothe property)

BuildingnameKO Cus7oms Y Auiommc7rv@

Buildingaddress Y0 S D enc7 R Fprmir C. 7y Zt. 6/89C

How is the title to the property held?

individual . corporation land trust
. partnership _X limited liability company other
Same as grantee? yes @
Name(s) of property owner(s) Ql chard D Koch /3) e77y L. KOGL\

(NOTE: All beneficial owners of a land trust, members of a limited liability company
and partners in a partnership must be listed.)

Owner(s) telephonenumbers 30G-222.5S25¢ . 217-62/-559Y




Property information
Property index number(s) O S~ RS /07 -0/ 0

Project information

Current use(s)- ; 3 o ¢ _
AToricTio Aed De7aic Qf/o,mr Shaf

General project description:

p@/u‘?:,uﬂ oF Boin 61.03

Drivx< way Redewe

Project financing

bank @ other AZEFFe

Bank name

Bank address

Bank contact

Contact's telephone number

Escrow agent (if applicable)

Escrow institution ~——

Escrow institution's address —_ _ _ __ _ __ _ __ ___

Escrow agent's telephone number

Received (date). J/-2-20 Applicant's signaturwvé




ORDINANCE NO. 1052

AN ORDINANCE
APPROVING A REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BY AND
BETWEEN THE CITY OF FARMER CITY, DEWITT COUNTY,
ILLINOIS AND RICHARD KOCH IN CONNECTION
WITH THE REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA

WHEREAS, Richard Koch (the “Developer”), has submitted a proposal to the City of
Farmer City, DeWitt County, Illinois (the “Municipality”) for redevelopment within the
Municipality’s Redevelopment Project Area (the “Redevelopment Project Area”); and, thereafter,
the Municipality and the Developer have engaged in negotiations related to a Redevelopment
Agreement (including all exhibits and attachments in connection therewith, the “Redevelopment
Agreement”) concerning redevelopment incentives and assistance related to the development and
redevelopment of a part of the Redevelopment Project Area.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF FARMER CITY, DEWITT COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows:

Section 1. Approval. The Redevelopment Agreement, in substantially the form thereof
presented before the meeting of the Mayor and City Council at which this ordinance is adopted,
shall be and is hereby ratified, confirmed and approved, and the Mayor and City Clerk are
authorized to execute and deliver the Redevelopment Agreement for and on behalf of the
Municipality with such changes therein as such officers shall approve; and upon the execution
thereof by the Municipality and the Developer, the appropriate officers, agents, attorneys,
consultants and employees of the Municipality are authorized to take all supplemental actions,
including the execution and delivery of related supplemental opinions, certificates, agreements and
instruments authorized by the Redevelopment Agreement, not inconsistent with the Redevelopment
Agreement, desirable or necessary to implement and otherwise give full effect to the
Redevelopment Agreement.

Section 2. Bid Waiver. Pursuant to the Municipality’s power and authority as a unit of
local government of the State of Illinois, applicable bidding requirements, if any, related to the
Redevelopment Agreement and related documents and related contracts entered into or to be
entered into shall be and are hereby waived. The Developer shall be responsible for compliance
with applicable law related to the Redevelopment Agreement, including without limitation the
Prevailing Wage Act (820 ILCS 130/0.01 et seq.).

Section 3. Effective. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its
passage and approval in the manner provided by law.

Upon motion by , seconded by , adopted at a
regular meeting this 20th day of July, 2020, by roll call vote, as follows:




AYES (Names):

NAYS (Names):

ABSENT (Names):

PASSED this 20th day of July 2020.

City Clerk

APPROVED this 20th day of July 2020.

Mayor



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
THE COUNTY OF DEWITT ) SS.
CITY OF FARMER CITY )

CERTIFICATION OF ORDINANCE

I, Angie Wanserski, do hereby certify that I am the duly selected, qualified and acting
City Clerk of the City of Farmer City, DeWitt County, Illinois (the “Municipality”), and as such
official I am the keeper of the records and files of the Municipality and of its Mayor and City
Council (the “Corporate Authorities”).

I do further certify that the attached ordinance constitutes a full, true and correct excerpt
from the proceedings of the regular meeting of the Municipality’s Corporate Authorities on July
20, 2020, insofar as same relates to the adoption of Ordinance No. , entitled:

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF FARMER CITY, DEWITT COUNTY,
ILLINOIS, AND RICHARD KOCH IN CONNECTION WITH THE
REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA,

a true, correct and complete copy of which ordinance as adopted at such meeting appears in the
minutes of such meeting and is hereto attached. Such ordinance was adopted and approved on
the date thereon set forth by not less than a affirmative vote of a majority of the Corporate
Authorities and approved by the Mayor on the date indicated thereon.

I do further certify that the deliberations of the Corporate Authorities on the adoption of
the above ordinance were taken openly, that the vote on the adoption of such ordinance was
taken openly and was preceded by a public recital of the nature of the matter being considered
and such other information as would inform the public of the business being conducted, that such
meeting was held at a specified time and place convenient to the public, that the agenda for the
meeting was duly posted on the Municipality’s website and at the City Hall at least 48 hours
before the meeting, that notice of such meeting was duly given to all of the news media
requesting such notice, that such meeting was called and held in strict compliance with the
provisions of the Illinois Municipal Code, as amended, and that the Corporate Authorities have
complied with all of the applicable provisions of such laws and such Code and their procedural
rules in the adoption of such ordinance.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of the
City of Farmer City, DeWitt County, Illinois, this 20th day of July 2020.

City Clerk
(SEAL)



REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

by and between the

CITY OF FARMER CITY, ILLINOIS

and

RICHARD KOCH

Dated as of July 20, 2020

Document Prepared By:

Joseph P. Chamley

Evans, Froehlich, Beth & Chamley
44 Main Street, Third Floor
Champaign, IL 61820



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS L.ttt 1
Section 1.1. DETINILIONS ..ottt ettt et a st 1
Section 1.2. CONSIUCTION ..ottt e e e eneaenens 3
ARTICLE II REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES ......ccooiviriiinncniencnenene 3
Section 2.1. Representations and Warranties of the City .........ccccoovevirveririenrenieirceereriens 3
(a) Organization and Standing...........ccecveerererieeeererrnirrrasr e erereessnns 3
(b)  Power and AUROLILY ....ocveiceiieieieiiieesece et 3
(c) Authorization and Enforceability...........coccocvrveeiinrrnrirnnnrncnineereienes 3
(d)  NO VIOItION. vttt er e e sene e v e eebeennerennas 3
(¢) Governmental Consents and Approvals.........ccccoovenirnnnnencnnens 4
Section 2.2. Representations and Warranties of the Developer ..........cccocveeviiviniciicnninenne. 4
(2)  OrGANIZAtION. .....eciiieeeitieii ittt ee e sneee e e e se s e ase e en e seenenaeas 4
(b) Power and AUthOTItY ......cccvvieieiieiei et 4
(c) Authorization and Enforceability.........ccocovvriicviiiinnncenrnee e 4
() NO VIOIAtON. ...c.viiiieeiecr ettt ettt ens 4
(e) Consents and APProvals ........c.coceereeveririnniiniieeree s 4
(f) No Proceedings or JudGMENtS........co.evueririreriirieriircenereneieneesesese s 4
Section 2.3. Disclaimer of Warranties.........cccovirerereeneneinceee et ceeecseeneseesessansenns 4
ARTICLEIII  CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO THE UNDERTAKINGS ON THE PART
OF THE DEVELOPER AND THE CITY ....cccoooiiiiiiiinenceceeciens 5
Section 3.1. Conditions Precedent.........ooiviiiiiniiinn e, 5
Section 3.2. Reasonable Efforts and Notice of Termination..........cccccooverevencninirncnenncen 5
ARTICLE IV CITY’S COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS ..o, 5
Section 4.1. City’s TIF Funded Financial Obligations.........c.cccccoevriiininineneneiicnicnicrncee 5
Section 4.2. Defense of Redevelopment Project Area .......occeeeeeeriiiiiicinienicceienenercnsaeens 5
ARTICLE V DEVELOPER’S COVENANTS ..ottt 6
Section 5.1. Commitment to Undertake and Complete Project .........ccccoeviviniicncrninincnnne 6
Section 5.2. Compliance with Agreement and Laws During Development...........c.co.ccccvnnne 6
Section 5.3. Prevailing Wages. ..o 6
Section 5.4. Continuing Compliance With LaWs .......ccccceviviiirnineeecnn e 6
Section 5.5. Tax and Related Payment Obligations ..........ccoccevniniiiieceninnecern e 6
ARTICLE VI PAYMENT PROCEDURES FOR ELIGIBLE REDEVELOPMENT
PROJECT COSTS ...ttt ettt st 7
Section 6.1. Payment Procedures ..........ccovrmiriniiin et 7
Section 6.2. Approval and Resubmission of RequiSitions ........c..cocvvcevvencrininencnniniccinens 7
Section 6.3. Time Of PAYMENTt ...coviiiiiiiiiii et st e 8



ARTICLE VII

Section 7.1.
Section 7.2.
Section 7.3.
Section 7.4.

ARTICLE VIII

Section 8.1.
Section 8.2.
Section 8.3.
Section 8.4.
Section 8.5.
Section 8.6.
Section 8.7.
Section 8.8.

ARTICLE IX

Section 9.1.
Section 9.2.
Section 9.3.
Section 9.4.
Section 9.5.
Section 9.6.
Section 9.7.
Section 9.8.
Section 9.9

Section 9.10.
Section 9.11.
Section 9.12.
Section 9.13.
Section 9.14.

EXHIBIT A

DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES .........cccoociiiiiiiininienn e

EVENtS Of DEfaull......ocooomeei ittt ettt s e e e sere e eas
RIGIES 10 CUTC....eeiiiiiiicieiecee ettt et saeesne e stenee

Remedies ...

............................................................................................................

Costs, Expenses and FEes.......ccociiiimiciccercceeenmee e

RELEASE, DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION OF CITY........ccccooeeen.

Declaration

Of INValIIty ...oovieiiiie e

Damage, Injury or Death Resulting from Project........c..ccccccennivicvencnnnnncnn.
Damage or Injury to Developer and Others ..........cccoceiicviinincrccirnnninnens
NO Personal Liability.......ccooiiiiiirnieniccescceeeecn et
City Not Liable for Developer Obligations.........cccoovuemvcernencriniininimncinencne.
Actions or Obligations of Developer..........ccceniriinnicneieeeiccnenenes
Environment COVENANES .......ccceertiriiiirieniicetesinee ettt sreereeeesrene e neeees

Notification

1) 8 O F:11 1 s TR RERE R OROR R PRSPPI

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ..o

Entire Agreement and AmMendments ........ccccecrerienierniniencrenineen e
TRIEA PAItIES .c.eeiiiiicceiienet et st et
COUNTETPALTS ....coveieitinicieeiieece ettt s re e sae e en e e emreeenes

Special and

Limited Obligation.........cccoviniriiiiniiiiineice e

Time and FOrce MajJEUre .......ccoevvirerriiriciieeciieieee et see e sn e snee et venneenas

Waiver .......

Cooperation and Further ASSUTANCES .......c..oocvveiiieeiierniieenieeneencrcnceeeenesenaeees

Notices and
Assignment

0003111501510 [oF: (8 (o) 11- SUNEUNERUUN TR PR

............................................................................................................

SUCCESSOTS 1N INTEIEST .....veivieiiiiiciiriecneereete et
No Joint Venture, Agency, or Partnership Created..........c.oovvviviinicininncnncinn.
THENOIS LaW; VENUE ....eveiiieie ettt s eetee st e sav et e e rnntees e nneentennes

Description

EXHIBIT LIST

of Property

(i)

10
10
10
10
10
11

11

11
11
12
12
12
12
12
12
13
13
13
13
13
14



REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (including any exhibits and attachments
hereto, collectively, this “Agreement”) is dated for reference purposes only as of February 3, 2020,
but actually executed by each of the parties on the dates set forth beneath each of their respective
signatures below, by and between the City of Farmer City, DeWitt County, Illinois, an Illinois
municipal corporation (the “City”), and Richard Koch of Farmer City, Illinois (the “Developer”).
This Agreement shall become effective upon the last of the City and the Developer to so execute
and deliver this Agreement to the other (the “Effective Date”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, in accordance with and pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation
Redevelopment Act (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-1 et seq.), as supplemented and amended (the “TIF Act”),
the Mayor and City Council of the City (the “Corporate Authorities”) adopted certain ordinances
(Ordinance Nos. 1018, 1019 and 1020 on December 10, 2018, collectively, the “TIF
Ordinances”); and

WHEREAS, under and pursuant to the TIF Act and the TIF Ordinance, the City designated
the Redevelopment Project Area (the “Redevelopment Project Area”) and approved the related
redevelopment plan, as supplemented and amended (the “Redevelopment Plan”), including the
redevelopment projects described in the Redevelopment Plan (collectively, the “Redevelopment
Projects”); and

WHEREAS, as contemplated by the Redevelopment Plan and the Redevelopment Projects,
the Developer proposes to undertake (or cause to be undertaken) the Project (including related and
appurtenant facilities as more fully defined below) upon the Property (as defined below); and

WHEREAS, the Property (as defined below) is within the Redevelopment Project Area; and

WHEREAS, the Developer is unwilling to undertake (or cause to be undertaken) the Project
(as defined below) without certain tax increment finance incentives from the City, which the City is
willing to provide; and

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it is desirable and in the City’s best interests to
assist the Developer in the manner set forth in this Agreement; and

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements
contained herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, the City and the Developer hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

Section 1.1. Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement and unless the context clearly
requires otherwise, the capitalized words, terms and phrases used in this Agreement shall have the
meaning provided in the above Recitals and from place to place herein, including as follows:

“Building” means the existing building located upon the Property.



“Corporate Authorities” means the Mayor and City Council of the City.

“Eligible Redevelopment Project Costs” means those costs paid and incurred in
connection with the Project which are authorized to be reimbursed or paid from the Fund as
provided in Section 5/11-74.4-3(q) of the TIF Act, including costs of renovations, repairs and
facade improvements of an existing private building upon the Property and other Project Costs.

“Fund” means, collectively, the “Special Tax Allocation Fund” for the Redevelopment
Project Area established under Section 5/11-74.8 of the TIF Act and the TIF Ordinance.

“Incremental Property Taxes” means, net of all amounts required by operation of the TIF
Act to be paid to other taxing districts, including as surplus, in each calendar year during the term of
this Agreement, the portion of the ad valorem real estate taxes arising from levies upon the
Redevelopment Project Area and any adjacent TIF redevelopment project area by taxing districts
that is attributable to the increase in the equalized assessed value of the Redevelopment Project
Area and any adjacent TIF redevelopment project area over the initial equalized assessed value of
the Redevelopment Project Area and any adjacent TIF redevelopment project area as assigned by
the DeWitt County Clerk which, pursuant to the TIF Ordinances and Section 5/11-74.4-8(b) of the
TIF Act, will be allocated to and when collected shall be paid to the Treasurer for deposit by the
Treasurer into the Fund established to pay Eligible Redevelopment Project Costs and other
redevelopment project costs as authorized under Section 5/11-74.4-3(q) of the TIF Act.

“Prevailing Wage Act” means the Prevailing Wage Act (820 ILCS 130/0.01 et seq.) of the
State of Illinois, the material terms of which require all contractors and subcontractors to pay all
laborers, workers and mechanics performing work for any “public body” (as therein defined) or on
any “public works” (as therein defined) no less than the “prevailing rate of wages” (hourly cash
wages plus fringe benefits) in the county where the work is located and to perform certain notice
and recordkeeping duties.

“Project” means the renovations, repairs and facade improvements of the Building upon the
Property.

“Project Completion Date” means the date which occurs no later than twelve (12) months
from and after the date this Agreement is executed by the City.

“Property” means, collectively, the real estate consisting of the parcel or parcels legally
described on Exhibit A hereto, upon or within which the Project is to be undertaken and completed.

“Reimbursement Amounts” means, collectively, amounts to be reimbursed or paid to or as
directed by the Developer from the Fund by the City under and pursuant to Section 4.1 of this
Agreement.

“Requisition” means a request by the Developer for a payment or reimbursement of
Eligible Redevelopment Project Costs pursuant to the procedures set forth in Article VI of this

Agreement.

“TIF Financing” means financing arrangements to or for the benefit of the Developer

2.



arising out of the TIF Act which pay or reimburse redevelopment project costs in whole or in part.
“Treasurer” means the City Treasurer of the City, or his or her designee.

Section 1.2. Construction. This Agreement, except where the context by clear implication
shall otherwise require, shall be construed and applied as follows:

(a) definitions include both singular and plural.
(b) pronouns include both singular and plural and cover all genders; and

(¢) headings of sections herein are solely for convenience of reference and do not
constitute a part hereof and shall not affect the meaning, construction or effect hereof.

(d) all exhibits attached to this Agreement shall be and are operative provisions of this
Agreement and shall be and are incorporated by reference in the context of use where
mentioned and referenced in this Agreement.

ARTICLE 11
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Section 2.1. Representations and Warranties of the City. In order to induce the
Developer to enter into this Agreement, the City hereby makes certain representations and
warranties to the Developer, as follows:

(a) Organization and Standing. The City is a municipality duly organized, validly
existing and in good standing under the Constitution and laws of the State of Illinois.

(b) Power and Authority. The City has full power and authority to execute and deliver
this Agreement and to perform all of its agreements, obligations and undertakings hereunder.

(¢) Authorization and Enforceability. The execution, delivery and performance of this
Agreement have been duly and validly authorized by all necessary action on the part of the City’s
Corporate Authorities. This Agreement is a legal, valid and binding obligation of the City,
enforceable against the City in accordance with its terms, except to the extent that any and all
financial obligations of the City under this Agreement shall be limited to the availability of such
Incremental Property Taxes therefor as may be specified in this Agreement and that such
enforceability may be further limited by laws, rulings and decisions affecting remedies, and by
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other laws affecting the enforceability of
debtors’ or creditors’ rights, and by equitable principles.

(d) No Violation. Neither the execution nor the delivery of this Agreement or the
performance of the City’s agreements, obligations and undertakings hereunder will conflict with,
violate or result in a breach of any of the terms, conditions, or provisions of any agreement, rule,
regulation, statute, ordinance, judgment, decree, or other law by which the City may be bound.

(¢) Governmental Consents and Approvals. No consent or approval by any
governmental authority is required in connection with the execution and delivery by the City of this

3



Agreement or the performance by the City of its obligations hereunder.

Section 2.2. Representations and Warranties of the Developer. In order to induce the
City to enter into this Agreement, the Developer makes the following representations and warranties
to the City:

(a) Organization. The Developer is a natural person.

(b) Power and Authority. The Developer has full power and authority to execute and
deliver this Agreement and to perform all of its agreements, obligations and undertakings hereunder
and thereunder.

(¢) Authorization and Enforceability. The execution, delivery and performance of this
Agreement have been duly and validly authorized by all necessary action on the part of the
Developer. This Agreement is a legal, valid and binding agreement, obligation and undertaking of
the Developer, enforceable against the Developer in accordance with its terms, except to the extent
that such enforceability may be limited by laws, rulings and decisions affecting remedies, and by
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other laws affecting the enforceability of
debtors’ or creditors’ rights, and by equitable principles.

(d) No Violation. Neither the execution nor the delivery or performance of this
Agreement will conflict with, violate or result in a breach of any of the terms, conditions, or
provisions of, or constitute a default under, or (with or without the giving of notice or the passage of
time or both) entitle any party to terminate or declare a default under any contract, agreement, lease,
license or instrument or any rule, regulation, statute, ordinance, judicial decision, judgment, decree
or other law to which the Developer is a party or by which the Developer or any of its assets may be
bound.

(e) Consents and Approvals. No consent or approval by any governmental authority or
by any other person or entity is required in connection with the execution and delivery by the
Developer of this Agreement or the performance by the Developer of its obligations hereunder.

() No Proceedings or Judgments. There is no claim, action or proceeding now pending,
or to the best of its knowledge, threatened, before any court, administrative or regulatory body, or
governmental agency (1) to which the Developer is a party and (2) which will, or could, prevent the
Developer’s performance of its obligations under this Agreement.

Section 2.3. Disclaimer of Warranties. The City and the Developer acknowledge that
neither has made any warranties to the other except as set forth in this Agreement. The City hereby
disclaims any and all warranties with respect to the Property and the Project, express or implied,
including, without limitation, any implied warranty of fitness for a particular purpose or
merchantability or sufficiency of the Incremental Property Taxes for the purposes of this
Agreement. Nothing has come to the attention of the Developer to question the assumptions or
conclusions or other terms and provisions of any projections of Incremental Property Taxes, and the
Developer assumes all risks in connection with the practical realization of any such projections of
Incremental Property Taxes.

ARTICLE III

-4-



CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO THE UNDERTAKINGS
ON THE PART OF THE DEVELOPER AND THE CITY

Section 3.1. Conditions Precedent. The undertakings on the part of the City as set forth in
this Agreement are expressly contingent upon each of the following:

(H) The Developer and owner of the Property shall have entered into a binding, written
agreement for Developer to acquire fee simple title to the Property within seventy-
five (75) months and a memorandum of said agreement shall have been recorded
with the DeWitt County, Illinois Recorder.

(2)  The Developer shall have obtained approval of the Project in accordance with all
applicable laws, codes, rules, regulations and ordinances of the City, including
without limitation all applicable subdivision, zoning, environmental, building code
or any other land use regulations (collectively, the “City Codes”), it being
understood that the City in its capacity as a municipal corporation has discretion to
approve the Project; and

3) The Developer shall have substantially completed the Project on or before the
Project Completion Date.

Section 3.2. Reasonable Efforts and Notice of Termination. The Developer shall use due
diligence to timely satisfy the conditions set forth in Section 3.1 above on or before the Project
Completion Date, but if such conditions are not so satisfied or waived by the City, then the City
may terminate this Agreement by giving written notice thereof to the Developer. In the event of
such termination, this Agreement shall be deemed null and void and of no force or effect and
neither the City nor the Developer shall have any obligation or liability with respect thereto.

ARTICLE IV
CITY’S COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS

Section 4.1. City’s TIF Funded Financial Obligations. The City shall have the
obligations set forth in this Section 4.1 relative to financing Eligible Redevelopment Project Costs
in connection with the Project. Upon the submission to the City by the Developer of a Requisition
for Eligible Redevelopment Project Costs incurred and paid by or on behalf of the Developer and
the approval thereof by the City in accordance with Article VI of this Agreement, the City, subject
to the terms, conditions and limitation set forth in this Section 4.1 immediately below, agrees to
reimburse the Developer, or to pay as directed by the Developer, from the Fund such amounts (the
“Reimbursement Amounts”) related to Project upon the Property as follows:

Such Reimbursement Amounts in connection with the Project shall be in an amount up to
$ for eligible Redevelopment Project Costs subject to the further terms and limitations
of this Agreement.

Section 4.2. Defense of Redevelopment Project Area. In the event that any court or
governmental agency having jurisdiction over enforcement of the TIF Act and the subject matter
contemplated by this Agreement shall determine that this Agreement, including the payments of any
Reimbursement Amounts to be paid or reimbursed by the City is contrary to law, or in the event that

-5.



the legitimacy of the Redevelopment Project Area is otherwise challenged before a court or
governmental agency having jurisdiction thereof, the City will defend the integrity of the
Redevelopment Project Area and this Agreement. Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding,
the Developer agrees that the City may, to the extent permitted by law, use any Incremental
Property Taxes, including any unpaid Reimbursement Amounts, if available, to be redirected to
reimburse the City for its defense costs, including without limitation attorneys’ fees and expenses.

ARTICLE 1V
DEVELOPER’S COVENANTS

Section S5.1. Commitment to Undertake and Complete Project. The Developer
covenants and agrees to undertake and complete the Project on or before the Project Completion
Date. The Developer recognizes and agrees that the City has sole discretion with regard to all
approvals and permits relating to the Project, including but not limited to approval of any required
permits, and any failure on the part of the City to grant or issue any such required permit shall not
give rise to any claim against or liability of the City pursuant to this Agreement. The City agrees,
however, that any such approvals shall be made in conformance with the City Codes and shall not
be unreasonably denied, withheld, conditioned or delayed.

Section 5.2. Compliance with Agreement and Laws During Project. The Developer
shall at all times undertake the Project, including any related activities in connection therewith, in
conformance with this Agreement and all applicable City Codes.

Section 5.3. Prevailing Wages. The Developer acknowledges that the Illinois Department
of Labor currently takes the position as a matter of its enforcement policy that the TIF financing of
the Project under this Agreement does not subject the Project to the Prevailing Wage Act unless the
Project also receives funding from another public source. The City makes no representation as to
any such application of the Prevailing Wage Act to the Project, and any failure by the Developer to
comply with the Prevailing Wage Act, if and to the extent subsequently found to be applicable by
any legal authority having jurisdiction, shall not be deemed a “Default” under this Agreement.
Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, the Developer agrees to assume all responsibility for any
such compliance (or noncompliance) with the Prevailing Wage Act in connection with the Project
under this Agreement in the event of any action by any party to enforce its provisions.

Section 5.4. Continuing Compliance with Laws. The Developer agrees that in the
continued use, occupation, operation and maintenance of the Building, the Developer will comply
with all applicable federal and state laws, rules, regulations and all applicable City Codes and other
ordinances.

Section 5.5. Tax and Related Payment Obligations. The Developer agrees to pay and
discharge, promptly and when the same shall become due, all general ad valorem real estate taxes
and assessments, all applicable interest and penalties thereon, and all other charges and impositions
of every kind and nature which may be levied, assessed, charged or imposed upon the Property or
any part thereof that at any time shall become due and payable upon or with respect to, or which
shall become liens upon, any part of the Property. The Developer, including any others claiming by
or through it, also hereby covenants and agrees not to file any application for property tax
exemption for any part of the Property under any applicable provisions of the Property Tax Code of
the State of Illinois (35 ILCS 200/1-1 et seq.), as supplemented and amended, unless the City and

-6-



the Developer shall otherwise have first entered into a mutually acceptable agreement under and by
which the Developer shall have agreed to make a payment in lieu of taxes to the City, it being
mutually acknowledged and understood by both the City and the Developer that any such payment
of taxes (or payment in lieu thereof) by the Developer is a material part of the consideration under
and by which the City has entered into this Agreement. This covenant of the Developer shall be a
covenant that runs with the land being the Property upon which the Project is undertaken and shall
be in full force and effect until December 31, 2039, upon which date this covenant shall terminate
and be of no further force or effect (and shall cease as a covenant binding upon or running with the
land) immediately, and without the necessity of any further action by City or Developer or any other
party; provided, however, upon request of any party in title to the Property, the City shall execute
and deliver to such party an instrument, in recordable form, confirming for the record that this
covenant has terminated and is no longer in effect. Nothing contained within this Section 5.4 shall
be construed, however, to prohibit the Developer from initiating and prosecuting at its own cost and
expense any proceedings permitted by law for the purpose of contesting the validity or amount of
taxes, assessments, charges or other impositions levied or imposed upon Property or any part
thereof.

ARTICLE VI
PAYMENT PROCEDURES FOR ELIGIBLE REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT COSTS

Section 6.1. Payment Procedures. The City and the Developer agree that the Eligible
Redevelopment Project Costs constituting the Reimbursement Amounts shall be paid solely, and to
the extent available, from Incremental Property Taxes that are deposited in the Fund and not
otherwise. The City and the Developer intend and agree that any Reimbursement Amounts shall be
disbursed by the City Manager for payment to the Developer in accordance with the procedures set
forth in this Section 6.1 of this Agreement.

The City hereby designates the City Manager of the City as its representative to coordinate
the authorization of disbursement of any Reimbursement Amounts for the Eligible Redevelopment
Project Costs. Payments to the Developer of any Reimbursement Amounts for Eligible
Redevelopment Project Costs shall be made upon request therefor, in form reasonably acceptable to
the City (each being a “Requisition”) submitted by the Developer at any time with respect to
Eligible Redevelopment Project Costs incurred and paid but not previously submitted. Each such
Requisition shall be accompanied by appropriately supporting documentation, including, as
applicable receipts for paid bills or statements of suppliers, contractors or professionals, together
with required contractors’ affidavits or lien waivers.

Section 6.2. Approval and Resubmission of Requisitions. The City Manager shall give
the Developer written notice disapproving any of the Requisitions within ten (10) days after receipt
thereof. No such approval shall be denied except on the basis that (i) all or some part of the
Requisition does not constitute Eligible Redevelopment Project Costs or has not otherwise been
sufficiently documented as specified herein; or (ii) a “Default” under this Agreement as described in
Section 6.1 hereof has occurred and is continuing. If a Requisition is disapproved by such City
Manager, the reasons for disallowance will be set forth in writing and the Developer may resubmit
any such Requisition with such additional documentation or verification as may be required, if that
is the basis for denial. The same procedures set forth herein applicable to disapproval shall apply to
such resubmittals.




Section 6.3. Time of Payment. Provided that performance of this Agreement has not been
suspended or terminated by the City under Article VII hereof, the City shall pay each of the
applicable Reimbursement Amounts which are approved by any one or more Requisitions under
this Article to the Developer within thirty (30) calendar days after the approval of any such
applicable Requisition.

ARTICLE VII
DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES

Section 7.1. Events of Default. The occurrence of any one or more of the events specified
in this Section 6.1 shall constitute a “Default” under this Agreement.

By the Developer:

(1) The furnishing or making by or on behalf of the Developer of any statement or
representation in connection with or under this Agreement or any of the Related Agreements that is
false or misleading in any material respect;

2) The failure by the Developer to timely perform any term, obligation, covenant or
condition contained in this Agreement or any of the Related Agreements;

By the City:
(1) The failure by the City to pay any Reimbursement Amounts which become due and

payable in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement; and

2) The failure by the City to timely perform any other term, obligation, covenant or
condition contained in this Agreement.

Section 7.2. Rights to Cure. The party claiming a Default under Section 6.1 of this
Agreement (the “Non-Defaulting Party”) shall give written notice of the alleged Default to the
other party (the “Defaulting Party”) specifying the Default complained of. Except as required to
protect against immediate, irreparable harm, the Non-Defaulting Party may not institute proceedings
or otherwise exercise any right or remedy against the Defaulting Party until thirty (30) days after
having given such notice, provided that in the event a Default is of such nature that it will take more
than thirty (30) days to cure or remedy, such Defaulting Party shall have an additional period of
time reasonably necessary to cure or remedy such Default provided that such Defaulting Party
promptly commences and diligently pursues such cure or remedy. During any such period
following the giving of notice, the Non-Defaulting party may suspend performance under this
Agreement until the Non-Defaulting Party receives written assurances from the Defaulting Party,
deemed reasonably adequate by the Non-Defaulting Party, that the Defaulting Party will cure or
remedy the Default and remain in compliance with its obligations under this Agreement. A Default
not cured or remedied or otherwise commenced and diligently pursued within thirty (30) days as
provided above shall constitute a “Breach” under this Agreement. Except as otherwise expressly
provided in this Agreement, any failure or delay by either party in asserting any of its rights or
remedies as to any Default or any Breach shall not operate as a waiver of any such Default, Breach
or of any other rights or remedies it may have as a result of such Default or Breach.

Section 7.3. Remedies. Upon the occurrence of a Breach under this Agreement by the
Developer, the City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to the

-8-



Developer of such termination and the date such termination is effective. Except for such right of
termination by the City, the only other remedy available to either party upon the occurrence of a
Breach under this Agreement by the Defaulting Party shall be to institute such proceedings as may
be necessary or desirable in its opinion to cure or remedy such Breach, including but not limited to
proceedings to compel any legal action for specific performance or other appropriate equitable
relief. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the sole remedy of the Developer upon the
occurrence of a Breach by the City under any of the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be
to institute legal action against the City for specific performance or other appropriate equitable
relief and under no circumstances shall the City be liable to the Developer for any indirect, special,
consequential or punitive damages, including without limitation, loss of profits or revenues, loss of
business opportunity or production, cost of capital, claims by customers, fines or penalties, whether
liability is based upon contract, warranty, negligence, strict liability or otherwise, under any of the
provisions, terms and conditions of this Agreement. In the event that any failure of the City to pay
any Reimbursement Amounts which become due and payable in accordance with the provisions
hereof is due to insufficient Incremental Property Taxes being available to the City, any such failure
shall not be deemed to be a Default or a Breach on the part of the City.

Section 7.4. Costs, Expenses and Fees. Upon the occurrence of a Default or a Breach
which requires either party to undertake any action to enforce any provision of this Agreement, the
Defaulting Party shall pay upon demand all of the Non-Defaulting Party’s charges, costs and
expenses, including the reasonable fees of attorneys, agents and others, as may be paid or incurred
by such Non-Defaulting Party in enforcing any of the Defaulting Party’s obligations under this
Agreement or in any litigation, negotiation or transaction in connection with this Agreement in
which the Defaulting Party causes the Non-Defaulting Party, without the Non-Defaulting Party’s
fault, to become involved or concerned.

ARTICLE VIII
RELEASE, DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION OF CITY

Section 8.1. Declaration of Invalidity. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary,
the City, its Corporate Authorities, officials, agents, employees and independent contractors shall
not be liable to the Developer for damages of any kind or nature whatsoever or otherwise in the
event that all or any part of the TIF Act, or any of the TIF Ordinances or other ordinances of the
City adopted in connection with either the TIF Act, this Agreement or the Redevelopment Plan,
shall be declared invalid or unconstitutional in whole or in part by the final (as to which all rights of
appeal have expired or have been exhausted) judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction, and
by reason thereof either the City is prevented from performing any of the covenants and agreements
herein or the Developer is prevented from enjoying the rights and privileges hereof; provided that
nothing in this Section 8.1 shall limit otherwise permissible claims by the Developer against the
Fund or actions by the Developer seeking specific performance of this Agreement or other relevant
contracts, if any, in the event of a Breach of this Agreement by the City.

Section 8.2. Damage, Injury or Death Resulting from Project. The Developer releases
from and covenants and agrees that the City and its Corporate Authorities, officials, agents,
employees and independent contractors shall not be liable for, and agrees to indemnify and hold
harmless the City, its Corporate Authorities, officials, agents, employees and independent
contractors thereof against any loss or damage to property or any injury to or death of any person
occurring at or about or resulting from any defect in the construction or installation of the Project,

9.



except as such may be caused by the intentional conduct, gross negligence, negligence or other acts
or omissions of the City, its Corporate Authorities, officials, agents, employees or independent
contractors that are contrary to the provisions of this Agreement.

Section 8.3. Damage or Injury to Developer and Others. The City and its Corporate
Authorities, officials, agents, employees and independent contractors shall not be liable for any
damage or injury to the persons or property of the Developer or any of its officers, agents,
independent contractors or employees or of any other person who may be about the Property or the
Project due to any act of negligence of any person, except as such may be caused by the intentional
misconduct, gross negligence, or acts or omissions of the City, its Corporate Authorities, officials,
agents, employees, or independent contractors that are contrary to the provisions of this Agreement.

Section 8.4. No Personal Liability. All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and
obligations of the City contained herein shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, promises,
agreements and obligations of the City and not of any of its Corporate Authorities, officials, agents,
employees or independent contractors in their individual capacities. No member of the Corporate
Authorities, officials, agents, employees or independent contractors of the City shall be personally
liable to the Developer (i) in the event of a Default or Breach by any party under this Agreement, or
(ii) for the payment of any Reimbursement Amounts which may become due and payable under the
terms of this Agreement.

Section 8.5. City Not Liable for Developer Obligations. Notwithstanding anything herein
to the contrary, the City shall not be liable to the Developer for damages of any kind or nature
whatsoever arising in any way from this Agreement, from any other obligation or agreement made
in connection therewith or from any Default or Breach under this Agreement; provided that nothing
in this Section 8.5 shall limit otherwise permissible claims by the Developer against the Fund or
actions by the Developer seeking specific performance of this Agreement or other relevant contracts
in the event of a Breach of this Agreement by the City.

Section 8.6. Actions or Obligations of Developer. The Developer agrees to indemnify,
defend and hold harmless the City, its Corporate Authorities, officials, agents, employees and
independent contractors, from and against any and all suits, claims and cost of attorneys’ fees,
resulting from, arising out of, or in any way connected with (i) any of the Developer’s obligations
under or in connection with this Agreement, (ii) the construction or installation of the Project, (iii)
the Developer’s compliance with the Prevailing Wage Act if, as and when applicable to the Project,
and (iv) the negligence or willful misconduct of the Developer, its officials, agents, employees or
independent contractors in connection with the management, development, redevelopment,
construction or installation of the Project, except as such may be caused by the intentional conduct,
gross negligence, negligence or breach of this Agreement by the City, its Corporate Authorities,
officials, agents, employees or independent contractors.

Section 8.7. Environmental Covenants. To the extent permitted by law, the Developer
agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, its Corporate Authorities, officials, agents,
employees and independent contractors, from and against any and all claims, demands, costs,
liabilities, damages or expenses, including attorneys’ and consultants’ fees, investigation and
laboratory fees, court costs and litigation expenses, arising from: (i) any release or threat of a
release, actual or alleged, of any hazardous substances, upon or about the Property or respecting any
products or materials previously, now or thereafter located upon, delivered to or in transit to or from

-10-



the Property regardless of whether such release or threat of release or alleged release or threat of
release has occurred prior to the date hereof or hereafter occurs and regardless of whether such
release occurs as a result of any act, omission, negligence or misconduct of the City or any third
party or otherwise; (ii) (A) any violation now existing (actual or alleged) of, or any other liability
under or in connection with, any environmental laws relating to or affecting the Property, or (B) any
now existing or hereafter arising violation, actual or alleged, or any other liability, under or in
connection with, any environmental laws relating to any products or materials previously, now or
hereafter located upon, delivered to or in transit to or from the Property, regardless of whether such
violation or alleged violation or other liability is asserted or has occurred or arisen prior to the date
hereof or hereafter is asserted or occurs or arises and regardless of whether such violation or alleged
violation or other liability occurs or arises, as the result of any act, omission, negligence or
misconduct of the City or any third party or otherwise; (iii) any assertion by any third party of any
claims or demands for any loss or injury arising out of, relating to or in connection with any
hazardous substances on or about or allegedly on or about the Property; or (iv) any breach, falsity or
failure of any of the representations, warranties, covenants and agreements of the like. For purposes
of this section, “hazardous materials” includes, without limit, any flammable explosives, radioactive
materials, hazardous materials, hazardous wastes, hazardous or toxic substances, or related
materials defined in the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act
of 1980, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 9601 et seq.), the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, as
amended (49 U.S.C. §§ 1801 et seq.), the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended
(42 U.S.C. §§ 9601 et seq.), and in the regulations adopted and publications promulgated pursuant
thereto, or any other federal, state or local environmental law, ordinance, rule, or regulation.

Section 8.8. Notification of Claims. Not later than thirty (30) days after the Developer
becomes aware, by written or other overt communication, of any pending or threatened litigation,
claim or assessment, the Developer will, if a claim in respect thereof is to be made against the
Developer which affects any of the Developer’s rights or obligations under this Agreement, notify
the City of such pending or threatened litigation, claim or assessment, but any omission so to notify
the City will not relieve the Developer from any liability which it may have to the City under this
Agreement.

ARTICLE IX
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 9.1 Entire Agreement and Amendments. This Agreement (together with Exhibit
A attached hereto) is the entire agreement between the City and the Developer relating to the
subject matter hereof. This Agreement supersedes all prior and contemporaneous negotiations,
understandings and agreements, written or oral, including in particular the Letter of Understanding,
and may not be modified or amended except by a written instrument executed by both of the parties.

Section 9.2. Third Parties. Nothing in this Agreement, whether expressed or implied, is
intended to confer any rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement on any other persons
other than the City and the Developer and their respective successors and assigns, nor is anything in
this Agreement intended to relieve or discharge any obligation or liability of any third persons to
either the City or the Developer, nor shall any provision give any third parties any rights of
subrogation or action over or against either the City or the Developer. This Agreement is not
intended to and does not create any third party beneficiary rights whatsoever.

-11-



Section 9.3. Counterparts. Any number of counterparts of this Agreement may be
executed and delivered and each shall be considered an original and together they shall constitute
one agreement.

Section 9.4. Special and Limited Obligation. This Agreement shall constitute a special
and limited obligation of the City according to the terms hereof. This Agreement shall never
constitute a general obligation of the City to which its credit, resources or general taxing power are
pledged. The City pledges to the payment of its obligations under Section 4.1 hereof only such
amount of the Incremental Property Taxes as is set forth in Section 4.1 hereof, if, as and when
received, and not otherwise.

Section 9.5. Time and Force Majeure. Time is of the essence of this Agreement;
provided, however, neither the Developer nor the City shall be deemed in Default with respect to
any performance obligations under this Agreement on their respective parts to be performed if any
such failure to timely perform is due in whole or in part to the following (which also constitute
“unavoidable delays™): any strike, lock-out or other labor disturbance (whether legal or illegal, with
respect to which the Developer, the City and others shall have no obligations hereunder to settle
other than in their sole discretion and business judgment), civil disorder, inability to procure
materials, weather conditions, wet soil conditions, failure or interruption of power, restrictive
governmental laws and regulations, condemnation, riots, insurrections, acts of terrorism, war, fuel
shortages, accidents, casualties, acts of God or third parties, or any other cause beyond the
reasonable control of the Developer or the City.

Section 9.6. Waiver. Any party to this Agreement may elect to waive any right or remedy
it may enjoy hereunder, provided that no such waiver shall be deemed to exist unless such waiver is
in writing. No such waiver shall obligate the waiver of any other right or remedy hereunder, or
shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of other rights and remedies provided pursuant to this
Agreement.

Section 9.7. Cooperation and Further Assurances. The City and the Developer covenant
and agree that each will do, execute, acknowledge and deliver or cause to be done, executed and
delivered, such agreements, instruments and documents supplemental hereto and such further acts,
instruments, pledges and transfers as may be reasonably required for the better assuring,
mortgaging, conveying, transferring, pledging, assigning and confirming unto the City or the
Developer or other appropriate persons all and singular the rights, property and revenues
covenanted, agreed, conveyed, assigned, transferred and pledged under or in respect of this
Agreement.

Section 9.8. Notices and Communications. All notices, demands, requests or other
communications under or in respect of this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to
have been given when the same are (a) deposited in the United States mail and sent by registered or
certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, (b) personally delivered or (c) sent by a
nationally recognized overnight courier, delivery charge prepaid, in each case, to the City and the
Developer at their respective addresses (or at such other address as each may designate by notice to
the other), as follows:

-12-



(1) In the case of the Developer, to:
RICHARD KOCH
405 Depot Road
Farmer City, IL. 61842
Tel:

(i1) In the case of the City, to:
CITY OF FARMER CITY, ILLINOIS
105 S. Main Street
Farmer City, IL 61842-0049
Attn: City Manager
Tel: (309) 928-3412

Whenever any party hereto is required to deliver notices, certificates, opinions, statements or other
information hereunder, such party shall do so in such number of copies as shall be reasonably
specified.

Section 9.9. Assignment. The Developer agrees that it shall not sell, assign or otherwise
transfer any of its rights and obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the City, except that: (i) any assignment of this Agreement as collateral, or (ii) any related sale,
assignment or transfer of this Agreement in whole to a legal entity having common ownership with
the Developer, may be made without the prior written consent of the City. Except as authorized in
this Section above, any other assignment in whole or in part shall be void and shall, at the option of
the City, terminate this Agreement. No such sale, assignment or transfer as authorized in this
Section, including any with or without the City’s prior written consent, shall be effective or binding
on the City, however, unless and until the Developer delivers to the City a duly authorized, executed
and delivered instrument which contains any such sale, assignment or transfer and the assumption
of all the applicable covenants, agreements, terms and provisions of this Agreement by the
applicable parties thereto.

Section 9.10. Successors in Interest. Subject to Section 9.9 above, this Agreement shall
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respectively authorized
successors, assigns and legal representatives (including successor Corporate Authorities).

Section 9.11. No Joint Venture, Agency, or Partnership Created. Nothing in this
Agreement nor any actions of either of the City or the Developer shall be construed by either of the
City, the Developer or any third party to create the relationship of a partnership, agency, or joint
venture between or among the City and any party being the Developer.

Section 9.12. Illinois Law; Venue. This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted
under the laws of the State of Illinois. If any action or proceeding is commenced by any party to
enforce any of the provisions of this Agreement, the venue for any such action or proceeding shall
be in DeWitt County, Illinois.

Section 9.13. Term. Unless earlier terminated pursuant to the terms hereof, this Agreement
shall be and remain in full force and effect from and after the Effective Date and shall terminate on
December 31 of the second (2nd) calendar year following the calendar year in which the City
executes this Agreement; provided, however, that anything to the contrary notwithstanding, the

-13-



Developer’s obligations under Section 5.5 and Article VIII of this Agreement shall be and remain in
full force and effect in accordance with the express provisions thereof.

Section 9.14. Construction of Agreement. This Agreement has been jointly negotiated by
the parties. The parties acknowledge that each has either been represented by or has had the
opportunity to consult with legal counsel and that accordingly the terms of this Agreement are not
to be construed against a party because that party may have primarily assumed responsibility for
preparation of this Agreement or because that party failed to understand the legal effect of any
provision of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Developer have caused this Agreement to be
executed by their duly authorized officers or manager(s) as of the date set forth below.

CITY OF FARMER CITY, DEWITT COUNTY,

ILLINOIS
By:
Mayor
ATTEST:
By:
City Clerk
Date:
RICHARD KOCH
By:
Date:

[Exhibit A follows this page and is an integral part of this Agreement in the context of use.]

-14-



EXHIBIT A

Description of Property

Legal: SEC 28 T21 RS, SUB OF N'52 A W 1/2 NW SEC 28-21-5, LT 3 (EXE 20 &
EX W.52)

Address: 405 Depot Road, Farmer City, IL 61842 (located in TIF #3-Forward TIF)

PIN: 05-28-101-010

A-1



Farmer City Haunted Forest

FARMERCITYCHAMBER.ORG/EVENTS/HAUNTED-FOREST ® FACEBOOK.COM/FARMERCITYHAUNTEDFOREST  E-MAIL: FCHAUNTEDFOREST@GMAIL.COM

7-16-20
City of Farmer City
To Honorable Council Members,

I'm writing on behalf of the Farmer City Haunted Forest. Due to Covid 19, and the uncertainties
surrounding the rules we will be under in October, we would like to request moving the 2020
event to Main Street. We are requesting the use of the Square, and the two city owned
properties on Main Street. The two properties consist of the property to the west of the Square
and the property southwest of the Square. QOur plan would be to decorate the square and two
city properties in a Halloween theme similar to the Haunted Forest.

By moving this event into town it can be made a drive through event. This would eliminate the
large crowd and potential for the spread of Covid 19. The committee feels this would still bring
people to Farmer City but in a safer manner.

We are requesting permission to decorate the square and two properties listed above. Our set
date would be the week of October 17" -22™. The event would run from Friday, October 23 to
October 31%. Clean up would be completed no later than November 2™ weather permitting. To
facilitate traffic flow we request no parking signs to be placed around the square during the
evening event hours.

Additionally we ask to use the power outlets in and around the park. In the forest we use
generators but feel such noise would detract from the event if held on Main Street.

We thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

The Farmer City Haunted Forest Committee
Angela Testory — Committee Chairperson
fchauntedforest@gmail.com

217-714-3669




